
 

 

Ancram Zoning Board of Appeals  

October 23, 2023 

In Person and Via Zoom 

Watch Meeting Online: 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=kvlH15L_szw 

 

Board Members Present: Steve Olyha (Chair), Fred Schneeberger, William Lutz, Sharon 

Cleveland, Ron Brant, Carol Falcetti (Alt), Jim Stickle (Alt)  

 

Board Members Absent: None  

 

Others Present: John Lyons, Kim Garrison 

 

Clerk: J Hoffman 

 

Chair Olyha opened the meeting at 7:00 PM. 

 

Minutes: 

 

The meeting minutes from the previous meeting, on September 18, 2023, of the Zoning Board of 

Appeals were reviewed. William Lutz stated the condition requiring the Applicant install a dry 

hydrant or standpipe was not included in the minutes.   

 

Fred Schneeberger motioned to approve the minutes with corrections. William Lutz seconded the 

motion. All in favor, motion carried. 

 

Correspondence: 

 

None 

 

Conflicts: 

 

The Chair, Steve Olyha, asked if there were any conflicts Fred Schneeberger stated he has a 

conflict and therefore will recuse himself from the O & G matter. 

 

Due to Fred Schneeberger’s recusal, First Alternate Carol Falcetti was designated by the Chair, 

Steve Olyha, to participate in the deliberations and decisions of the Zoning Board of Appeals on 

the O & G Appeal to substitute for Fred Schneeberger. 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Old Business: 

 
O & G Industries 

Appeal of Town Zoning Enforcement Officer 

208.-1.14.100 &207.-1-24 

State Route 22 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=kvlH15L_szw


 

 

The Chair, Steve Olyha, read the oath to the Applicants. 

 

The Applicants affirmed. 

 

Kevin Brown of Fogel and Brown, P. C. appeared and spoke on behalf of the Applicants. The 

Applicants are appealing the determinations of May 31, 2023, and July 29, 2023, regarding the 

Boston Corners Road made by Zoning Enforcement Officer Ed Ferratto. 

 

Mr. Brown acknowledged receipt of the draft resolution and stated it contained a summary of the 

preliminary facts. 

 

Mr. Brown was joined by TJ Amelia, Vice President of Construction Materials at O & G, and 

Richard Warren, Vice President of Facilities at O & G. 

 

O & G is a family-owned business, which provides construction materials throughout 

Connecticut and Southeast New York. They have just celebrated 100 years in business and TJ is 

a fourth-generation employee and a Naval veteran. 

 

Mr. Brown stated the first time he was at the Ancram Town Hall to review records it was a 

different Town Hall and Records were stored in shoe boxes. He stated that mined materials are 

necessary for construction and the built environment. 

 

According to Mr. Brown, between the early1980s and the mid 2000s approximately half the 

mines in operation in the 1980s closed. Mr. Brown continued that studies show as mines went 

out of business haul distances increased. For haul distances beyond 20 or 30 miles the cost to 

haul the materials would exceed the value of the materials. Longer haul distances also mean an 

increase in energy use. He summarized that mining within communities provides benefits, by 

reducing the price of materials, reducing energy consumption, and providing local jobs. 

 

Mines are regulated by DEC, sites are required to be reclaimed, and there are bonds to ensure 

reclamation. Many mines have concurrent reclamation, which means that the reclamation occurs 

shortly after the materials are removed. 

 

Mr. Brown stated the O & G mine had been in operation since the 1980s. It was purchased by O 

& G in 1987 or 1989. It was a Specially Permitted Use. It continued as a Specially Permitted Use 

until approximately 8-10 months ago when the Planning Board questioned whether they could 

renew the Special Use Permit. 

 

The last Special Use Permit was issued by the Planning Board in November of 2017. The Zoning 

Law in effect at the date of approval was passed on November 20, 2014. Article V Section D 

provides standards for specific uses which includes a section on gravel mining, which begins on 

page 120. The Code allows for 3 specific exemptions which shall not require a gravel mining 

special use permit. 

 

Mr. Brown continued by reading Article VI Special Use Permits Section (G) on page 146 of the 

November 20, 2014 Town of Ancram Zoning Law which states, “Any use for which a special 



 

 

use shall may be granted shall be deemed a conforming use in the district in which the use is 

located, provided that the special use permit shall affect on the lot, or portion thereof, which is 

the subject of the special use permit application.” He concluded that the code is clear a special 

use permit is required and once a special use permit is received the use is conforming. 

 

The Scenic Corridor Overlay Zone (SCOZ) Local Law had not been incorporated into the 2014 

Zoning Law despite being passed in 2003 but it has since been incorporated. 

 

Mr. Brown read from the SCOZ law, which deemed gravel mines as non-conforming uses which 

were allowed to continued but were prohibited from expanding. 

 

Mr. Brown stated that the SCOZ was ambiguous and turned to contract law to assert that the 

ambiguity should be construed against the drafter. 

 

Mr. Brown presented the Zoning Board of Appeals with EXHIBIT A, a special use permit for O 

& G to mine in 2004 issued by the Zoning Board of Appeals, which was granted a year after the 

enactment of the SCOZ. He stated that if the SCOZ intended to prohibit mines the ZBA would 

not have granted the special use permit the following year. O & G received renewals from the 

ZBA and the Planning Board. 

 

Mr. Brown stated regardless of the SCOZ provisions the permit granted by the Planning Board in 

2017 was a good permit because the provisions of the SCOZ were not in effect. Mr. Brown 

stated the adopting resolution of the November 20,2014 repeals and replaces the prior zoning law 

and supersedes inconsistent laws. He continued if the SCOZ was not repealed and replaced 

because it was a stand-alone law it was inconsistent with the November 20, 2014 Zoning Law 

because of the section which states uses which have received special use permits are deemed to 

be conforming. Lastly, he read Local Law 1 of 2020, which incorporated the SCOZ provisions 

into the Zoning Law. 

 

Mr. Brown stated that if O & G were to be classified as a non-conforming use they are now on 

notice. He continued that when the question arose as to whether the mine was active O & G 

extracted material to the end of the permit. He stated that the reason a mine is not used is because 

of hauling expenses and local demand. He continued if there were a new interpretation, they 

would exact material yearly but there should have been notice of the change. Lastly, he 

concluded if they were a non-conforming use they do not need to renew the special use permits 

and can release the bond they have which exceeds the DEC requirements. 

 

Steve Olyha opened the floor for questions by the Zoning Board. 

 

Steve Olyha asked about the foundation of O & G’s appeal and whether O & G felt that they 

were not a non-conforming use.  

 

Mr. Brown responded by citing the existence of the special permit and the language in Article VI 

(G) of the 2014 Zoning Law. Mr. Brown continued that the plain language and the history 

evidenced that the mine was a conforming, specially permitted use. 

Carol Falcetti asked about the definition of “Life of Mine.” 



 

 

 

Mr. Brown responded that it was defined as what had been reviewed under the State 

Administrative Procedures Act and under SEQRA and laid out as an approved mine area.    

 

Carol Falcetti continued that they could not go beyond what was approved by the DEC. 

 

Mr. Brown replied it would be deemed non-conforming. 

 

Carol Falcetti asked for further clarification as to whether the DEC approval was administrative 

approval or included actual review. 

 

Mr. Brown clarified there would be SEQRA review usually conducted by the DEC as Lead 

Agency. However, he mentioned that around 2005 or 2006 the Town of Ancram tried to be the 

Lead Agency for a review, which evidenced they believed they were a permitting authority of the 

use and the use was not believed to be non-conforming. 

 

Will Lutz asked about the facts around what constituted discontinuance if the mine was a non-

conforming use. 

 

Mr. Brown cited activities which evidenced continuance including activities such as permit 

renewals, reports, landscape plantings, replanting, maintenance steep slopes, maintenance of 

access area, and DEC inspections. 

 

Steve Olyha asked for specificity regarding what non-mining activities had occurred within the 

two-year period the ZEO had classified the mine as unused. 

 

Mr. Brown responded by directing the ZBA to Exhibit 2 of Richard Warren’s affidavit and read 

selected portions highlighting site security, slope maintenance, bond renewals. 

 

Will Lutz stated that he felt the mine as a reserve and the environmental considerations related to 

haul distances were both important facts. 

 

Jim Stickle asked about how O & G would have known about the 2-year period. Then he stated 

that even if O & G was shut down, they would still need to reclaim the mine so they could have 

the DEC bond back. 

 

Mr. Brown stated yes reclamation was still required or the bond would be forfeited but that he 

did not believe O & G would abandon the property without reclamation. 

 

Ron Brant asked if O & G intended to conduct mining on the property again. 

 

Mr. Brown responded yes. 

 

Steve Olyha clarified the finding made by the ZEO  

 



 

 

Mr. Brown responded that they had submitted yearly reports, believing they were a specially 

permitted, conforming use. Further, as soon as the question arose as to whether they we 

conforming or non-conforming they extracted materials and intended to continue to do so now 

they were on notice. 

 

Sharon Cleveland asked about covid. 

 

Mr. Brown responded that some of the period the ZEO had classified the mine as discontinued 

was in fact during covid. 

 

Carol Falcetti asked about ambiguity of the code. 

  

Mr. Brown stated that it was a principle of contract law to resolve ambiguity in favor of the non-

drafting party. 

 

Mr. Brown stated that ambiguity in zoning codes were often resolved in favor of the property 

owner due to their property rights. 

 

Steve Olyha summarized next steps, which were clarified by John Lyons. The ZBA will hold a 

public hearing on November 27, 2023. The ZBA will seek private legal advice on the matter and 

deliberations will occur in public. The ZBA hopes to deliberate and vote on the matter on 

December 18, 2023. 

 

The ZBA reviewed the Resolution attached as EXHIBIT B. 

 

Ron Brant motioned to approve the resolution. The motion was seconded by Carol Falcetti. 

 

RECORD OF VOTE 

 

MEMBER NAME     AYE  NAY 

Chair  _Steve Olyha____________  _X__   ____ 

Member _Will Lutz_____________  _X__ ____ 

Member  _Sharon Cleveland_______  _X__ ____ 

Member  _Carol_Falcetti__________  _X__   ____ 

 

Member _Fred Schneeberger______  _ABSTAINED_  

 

All in favor motion carries. 

  

New Business: None 

 

 

Carol Falcetti motioned to adjourn. The motion was seconded by William Lutz. All in favor, 

motion carried. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 



 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

J Hoffman 

Clerk Town of Ancram Planning and Zoning Department 


